
 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 1 - 

 

Minutes 

Indian Hills General Improvement District 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

District Office 

3394 James Lee Park Rd. #A 

Carson City, NV  89705 

    October 16, 2024 

                                                     Regular Board Meeting 

          6:00 P.M. 

                                                   
 

Trustees Present: Chairman Robert Stulac, Vice Chairman Garcia, Secretary/Treasurer Siegman, 

Trustee Dunham, and Trustee Lufrano. 

 

Trustees Absent: none. 

  

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson and Administrative Services Supervisor/Human 

Resources Brooke Thompson. 
  

Others Present: District Counsel Chuck Zumpft, District Engineer Colin Surge, Residents Kathy 

Waters, Bill Eisele and Ben and Debbie Walker.  

 

6:00P.M. - Regular Meeting 

 
1. Call to Order    

 Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes. 

 Chairman Stulac called the meeting to order at 6:00PM. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Trustee Siegman. 

 

3. Public Interest Comment: none  

4. Approval of Agenda 

 

Chairman Stulac stated absent objection he approves the agenda. No objection. Item  

passed, agenda approved.  

 

5. Reports to the Board: 

a. General Manager Report 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Thank you, Mr. Chair. So, as you see 

from my report, the parks department, they're getting ready for fall. They've 

been going through doing a lot of cleanup and just working on 

miscellaneous things. They've been touching up crosswalks and working on 

that. So, they also trenched and ran the water line for the dog park water 

fountain. So, they're hoping to get it in here in the very near future. But 

that's been one of those things that's been just kind of on the back burner as 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 2 - 

 

they're working on other responsibilities, and when they have time, they go 

over and work on it. So, the big part is done. The good news about that is 

before when we were looking at it, they were looking at potentially needing 

to run it off of an irrigation line. And now they've ran its own line. So, 

they'll be able to leave the dog park water fountain on during the winter 

while turning off the irrigation lines that water fountain is designed to be in 

freezing temperatures. 

 Chairman Stulac stated Nice. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I have gotten officially gotten our first 

quote for the cameras in the parks, the high def cameras and I am very 

excited about it for us to put a camera on, we're looking at putting one camera 

out on one of the the lamp poles out over the ball field that will pan around 

and look at both fields out there. We're looking at putting a camera at the 

corner of the skate park that will pan around and look at James Lee Park as 

well as the skate park. And then we'll have another camera over in the We're 

probably going to mount it up on top of the fence on the for the tennis courts 

that will pan around and view the tennis courts and the dog park, so we'll 

have full coverage over here. Then a park on the a camera off in each of the 

parks for North Sunridge and South Sunridge Park will be mounted on the 

restrooms over there and will pan around. These are high-def cameras. They 

have a very long range, including at night, so we'll be able to access them 

remotely if needed, but they will record locally. So, if we come in and there's 

some damage, we can just go back and review the footage and see who was 

out there at the time. So, when he mentioned all of this, the cameras, the 

servers, the Wi-Fi. The point I was thinking, oh, this is going to be pricey, 

and it came back at $14,000, which is $6,000 under what we budgeted for. So 

pretty excited about that. We are going to have some additional costs for 

running the power out run the tennis courts. But I'm very excited to get that 

first quote back. So, I'm waiting on a couple that have said they want to send 

over a proposal for us, and hopefully we'll be moving forward with that soon. 

But despite the fact that we've already got one that's $6,000 under budget, I'm 

very excited about that, especially with the coverage that we get that we're 

going to get. 

Trustee Lufrano stated Can I ask you a quick question? 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Absolutely. 

Trustee Lufrano stated did were there previously cameras out there? I feel 

like you've told us before there was going to be one, like out on the out on the 

building, the this building next door. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated So what we were looking at doing 

before was we were going to put a camera out there that we were going to 

have to trench under, put a pole on the corner of the skate park, and then 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 3 - 

 

shoot an internet shot from this building from our maintenance shop over to 

it. 

Trustee Lufrano stated Okay. But that just never happened. 

 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated No, because it was at that point that 

we went ahead and just budgeted to have a company come in and put our 

surveillance system into the parks. So, it was it was at that point that I was 

like, okay, I'm done trying to piecemeal this list, just make it happen. So. 

Trustee Lufrano stated Okay. Okay. Thank you. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Any other questions on the cameras? 

Trustee Dunham stated The clarity of the cameras. You know. Watching 

several different crime shows and everything. How good is the resolution 

and the recognizing. And you know, I know they do some really good work 

out there, but it all boils down to how much it costs. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated These are all 4K cameras. And so, 

they're high definition. 

Trustee Dunham stated And we can really thank the $6000 under budget. 

That's fantastic. 

Chairman Stulac stated Yeah.  

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Yeah. I'm really excited about that. 

Especially since what we're looking at, for example, the two, the two over in 

the North and South Sunridge parks, those will have recorders inside the 

breezeways of the restrooms there that will record all the footage so we can 

go back and review it as needed. If we want to, we can install Starlink mini 

systems out there, which will provide us with internet connection at both of 

the parks and then just upload. We'll have remote access to them. So that 

gives us an additional $6,000 in that budget to look at anything additional 

that we want to do with it. But I, I'm not sold on the remote access for those 

parts of it. The one thing that I am that does make me consider doing remote 

access is I would like to share access to these cameras with the sheriff's 

office. So, if DCSO needs to take a look at something, they'll be able to look 

at our cameras. But that's the only reason I can see us wanting remote access 

on the other side. This side will automatically have remote access because 

it'll be tied into our network here. 

Trustee Dunham stated One final question. Will they react when the camera 

goes off when you get notice, or the sheriffs get a notice? 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 4 - 

 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated No, no. So, because it's the cameras, 

the cameras will just be recording 24 over seven and they'll slowly pan 

around and film things if they reacted to motions. For example, when we 

had when I had the ring cameras out there, I was getting notifications all the 

time because there's people in our parks. 

Trustee Dunham stated Okay. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated So these will just record, and they'll 

be reactive. But what it'll do is if someone is vandalizing something, we'll 

be able to see it on the cameras and respond to that person.  

Chairman Stulac stated Chris, I have a question. Being that we're having a 

lot of vandalism at night, how well is the resolution in nighttime with these 

cameras? 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Night vision is outstanding. 

Chairman Stulac stated Good. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated He gave me a map and I actually 

didn't print that map out for you, but I can put a copy in your boxes, but it 

shows the range that the night vision will have on them. For example, the 

one out at North or at Other Ballpark will cover almost all of the ballpark. 

Chairman Stulac stated So because that my neighbor has, he works for 

ADT, and he has his van out all the time and he puts cameras for people up. 

And he posted a shot the other week when a lot of our trash cans were 

knocked over. And we were all a lot of us wondering if it was a very windy 

night and it was his kids that came by, but the resolution on his you, you 

could kind of see their height, but you really had no ability to really. They 

weren't resolution clarity wasn't enough to really identify the youngsters. 

You know, I mean, 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated It's the same thing with the ring 

cameras. Those are consumer grade cameras. Yeah. These are our great 

industrial grade, their business-grade cameras. 

Chairman Stulac stated So and just one last question. Now that we're doing 

all this for the vandalism and how we had the light shot out by the park. Did 

we get any fingerprints off that CO2 cartridge? 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I haven't heard back from the sheriff 

on that. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 5 - 

 

Chairman Stulac stated I was just curious. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated That's something I'm sure if they if, 

you know, I there were a million things and it's right if they pursue 

something or if they do pull something, they will get back with us on that. 

Chairman Stulac stated All right. Thank you. 

Chairman Stulac stated Anybody else? 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Yes. Mr. chair, I just have a couple of 

questions on the general manager's report. Tennis locks. I just got back from 

vacation, so I haven't been out there to look did those get put in or at least 

one of them. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Not yet. So actually it's. Did I 

mention those in here? No. No I didn't. Okay. Sorry about that. The tennis 

locks, actually, the rep for the company came out and gave us a lock for the 

tennis courts. She said if you guys see if this will work for you. Steve said, 

well, you know, we, I, we don't want to take away business from you. And 

she goes, no, we'll give you guys a lock. Go ahead and put it in there and see 

if you can get it to work, because it needs to be adapted to the pole, which 

Steve is confident he'll get it. So, Steve said, well, okay, well, if this one 

works, we'll definitely call you for another one and order another one for 

me. And she goes, if you need another one, call me and I'll give you another 

one. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Wow. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated So okay. But we do have we do have 

one lock and it's they're going to have to do some welding on it, but it will 

be going in soon as well. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Awesome. Okay, great that the painting, the 

crosswalks, stop bars, considering the public input and feedback on Mica 

there is that one of the priority areas that are being painted? I'm assuming 

that, 

General Manager Chris Johnson: stated Yeah, they're going through all over 

the place and working on it right now. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Right, right. 

Chairman Stulac stated I think they did them up there on Mica. I noticed it, 

yeah, 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 6 - 

 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated But I didn't get over there to notice us. Thank 

you for confirming that. And regarding the maintenance and those types of 

things we talked about. And I know you're working on a straw man for 

maintenance schedule so that we have for possible for posterity so that you 

have a schedule of when everything needs to get done and kind of, you 

know, gets done once a year this time of year or whatever, is that close to a 

point where I can come in and sit down and look it over with you or, you 

know. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Steve made a big list for me and I 

haven't put it together yet. But I'll finish that up for you. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Do you have a target for that. So, I can just. I 

can come back and if you don't have a target that's fine. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated So he actually he already gave me 

the list here a few months ago and with everything. And it's a general list. 

It's not. It's not. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated It's kind of a straw man. October. Yeah. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated It's just these are our fall items. 

These are our spring items. So Yeah, I can have a copy of that for you 

tomorrow. Well, he wrote everything down, so I'm just transferring it over 

to typing. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated If I get it, to get that date for a date. Even if you 

tell me in two weeks, I'll. I'll give you a date for when I'll have it. That's fine 

enough for me. I just want to have a. I don't want to lose track of it. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Sure. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated I'd like to have visibility to when it's ready. And 

that's. That's all I have.  

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Okay, any other questions as far as the 

security cameras? Okay. So, the capital improvement plan. Colin and I have 

been working on that, and I just haven't gotten through the rest of it yet. I'll be 

bringing it to the board probably next month shooting for next month. Bring 

it in here to get approval to go forward with the capital improvement plan. 

The water tank rehab project is actually going very well. So, at the time that I 

wrote this, there's a lot of stuff that has happened since I wrote these reports. 

The sandblasting is done. They've stripped it completely of paint. And if you 

guys remember when we did the Valley Vista tank, all the problems we had 

at the bottom of the tank and the welding that they had to do, we don't have 

those problems here. They said the tank looked beautiful inside. There are a 

couple of little miscellaneous issues, but nothing major. So, I'm very excited 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 7 - 

 

about that. That's one of those things where yesterday, talking to Matt and I, I 

sat back and I went, okay, that's good to hear because that got expensive up in 

Valley Vista, and we were kind of anticipating it, but it looks great. So, we 

did have a little change there because of in fact. Is that in your report a little 

change there Collin. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated No. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Okay. So, remember we have to put 

the vent, the vent on top of South tank. And we've got to put that into the 

project. But changing the material of the vent offset the cost. So, we're going 

to be able to put the vent on South tank as long as well as on north tank and 

change them to aluminum and our costs I think our costs went up $1,000. So, 

it's comparable. We're happy with that. 

Chairman Stulac stated But we're, we're probably on our budget then because 

we had that. There were a lot of questions at the last meeting, even from the 

public about I believe it was on that one, wasn't it, the contingency in the 

budget. So, it looks like we'll come under budget then on that, right? 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Yeah. Knock on wood. 

Chairman Stulac stated I mean, they didn't see anything major. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated Yeah. It's still too early to say that, but. 

Chairman Stulac stated But they got inside and didn't see anything. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated The blasting is done on the inside, 

which is where our highest risk was.  

Chairman Stulac stated Okay. Good. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated So the five k is actually this 

weekend. They now have over 60 people signed up. They are the trails 

Association sized it down a little bit because there is another five K going 

on the same day down in Gardnerville. But we've got 60 some odd people 

that are coming up to do the five K. And that's families and individuals. So, 

it's going to be a fun event. Kicks off early this Saturday morning. So, if any 

of you want to come out and watch these people run off into the hills and 

laugh at them as they go, that's where I will be. 

Chairman Stulac stated How early? Seven. I'm so dark. It’s so dark at 7:00. 

Kind of. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated the sign-up is at 7:30. I think the race 

starts at 8 or 830. So. Early morning on Saturday. Community cleanup at the 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 8 - 

 

time that I wrote this, we were expecting a large turnout. And I can tell you 

now that it's in the past we had a large turnout. We ended up closing down 

at about 10:45 because all of the bins were full. So, again, it was a very 

successful event. A lot of people came out. A lot of cars. And it never fails 

to surprise me how early people are parked out here for that event. There are 

people that park out here, at 5:45, 6:00 in the morning, they get in line. So, it 

went very well. Cleaned off another well, it'd be 240 tons of or yards of 

garbage. So, it's a good event. And then the church has pulled back their 

volunteers. So, we no longer have volunteers for the church. So, our like our 

community cleanup, they were missed. A lot of the people that pulled up 

there were asking where the donuts are. And I'm like, sorry, the church 

didn't bring it this time. And they're like, well, where is your donuts? I'm 

like, we're providing free dumps. So yeah. Thank you. It went very well. 

And we don't have any church volunteers, so we're kind of down to a 

skeleton crew on our event. But the good news about this is they finally 

gave us a definitive answer that, no, they won't be with us anymore because 

like the last 3 or 4 events, we were expecting volunteers, and they didn't 

show up. So that got that was a little rough for us. But now knowing that it’s 

just going to be our crew, we're making it happen. So that being said, are 

there any other questions on the report? 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Donuts? Is that for the workers? That or was 

that for the people? 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated No the people. So, on the community 

cleanup day, the church always brought a at the table, and they would get 

donuts and coffee. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated That's a lot of doughnuts. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Oh, yeah. They always had, like, six 

dozen doughnuts out there. Right. And the coffee, they would give people 

coffee and donuts as they were waiting in line. 

Chairman Stulac stated So I had a couple of questions one of the things I did 

these last few days is I was looking back at the last report and the minutes 

and things that were talked about and the stuff that was being looked into, 

and they just weren't in your report. So, I just wanted to ask you a couple of 

things, Chris. There were a number of questions and a discussion last week 

about, you know, speeding and different things. So I went back and looked 

at the minutes and you were going to mention about the phone call you had 

with the sheriff, the flasher installation on the sign up in mica, and then the 

quote from I put down on page 74 that you have you were going to look into 

getting a quote on a radar sign and move the trailer. That's up to the side of 

the road. I just wanted a little update on some of those issues because they 

weren't I didn't see them here in the report, and.  



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 9 - 

 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I completely forgot to put those into 

this report because those are good. Good. Those are all good news. Any 

speed sign? The actual speed logger that will go up on the sign is on order. 

And it's here, isn't it? Yep. Yeah. It's here. We've got it in, and it cost us 

$1,400. We were guessing 4 to $5,000. It cost us $2,400. So that sign is 

here. The flasher for the opposite side of the pedestrian walk is ordered. It 

was $410. I think I was guesstimating roughly around $1,200. It was $400. 

Chairman Stulac stated So for the flashing. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated What's that? 

Chairman Stulac stated The flasher. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Yeah. The flasher. That'll go on the 

opposite side of the pole. And the reason that I guess it's so high I was I 

wasn't sure if we'd be able to just put another flash on there, or if we were 

going to need another battery bank and solar panels and all that for it. She 

said, no, it's plug and play. Put another flash on there. So, I got a shipment 

notification on that today. So, it should be here in the next couple of days, 

early next week at the latest. And that's quick and easy install for them. So 

that flash will be on the trailer. We haven't moved it. It's just trying to 

collect a bunch of data right there. That's been a subject of conversation for 

a couple of board meetings now. So, I just want to when I come back with 

that data, I want to say, okay, now this data is unquestionable. You can't say 

that. No, it's not working that way. And I've been I've gone out there a few 

times and parked and watched and taken video of it. So, but yeah, the trailer 

will be moving. And then you noticed they did the crosswalks up there and 

they are going through and doing crosswalks in other areas throughout the 

district. 

Chairman Stulac stated Because I was. I think your idea was good to 

eventually move on to the other side of the street right where it's at now, 

because a lot of people fly up from down from down from the golf course 

communities. They come up and so then as they're accelerating up the hill 

and some of them go straight and then down, like let's say they're coming 

from the springs so then they would see and then that side of the street, 

there's just that one house. But then it's just there's no kind of like we have it 

now. It's not really opposite someone's house, but I think it'll be great when 

you move it to the attic, because you would suggest they usually do the one 

side, then go to the other. So, I think the other side of the street will serve 

well. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I always do that. 

Chairman Stulac stated Yeah, it'd be good there. Did you end up talking 

with the. You were going to. Did you call the sheriff to have that? I think 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 10 - 

 

there was a bunch of discussions. You mentioned to the public that you 

were going to call the sheriff, and so talk. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I emailed with the undersheriff. 

Yeah. And he has told me that they are increasing the patrols up there and 

increasing enforcement up there. So, they're doing that. I had thought about 

bringing him into a meeting. And if the board would like to have the 

undersheriff come in, I can ask him about that. Okay. 

Chairman Stulac stated I thought I thought the way the minutes read, you 

were going to ask if he would, if he'd be willing to come. But maybe I said. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I said I'm tempted to have him come 

in and do a presentation or talk to him, because we did have some 

individuals in the, in the audience that were saying that the sheriff doesn't do 

anything. And so. 

Chairman Stulac stated Okay.  

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Yeah. It was along those lines of the 

sheriff doesn't do anything and we've called them and they don't respond. 

So. Okay. 

Chairman Stulac stated And none of those folks in the public, 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated If the board would like to, we can 

get that on the agenda for next month. I can check and see if the sheriff's 

office has a representative that can come in and talk to us about their 

enforcement. 

Chairman Stulac stated Okay. Well, maybe at the end of the meeting when 

we have the discussion with all the board members, we could see if there's 

an appetite for any of the rest of the board and want to do that. And then the 

only other thing I saw in the minutes was actually I know it was brought up. 

I know Vicki had talked about the one picture that showed those. The 

terminology was a little confusing, but those white poles or but you had 

mentioned you were going to research where in the district they could go 

because, like you were saying, you just don't at the corner of Mica and 

North Ridge there where Lynne was, had a picture of or trying to advocate 

those there, there was other locations, I thought in the district you said 

something, you were going to drive around and see if there were some other 

locations where those could be feasible. And I thought you were going to 

look into what that would be for the practicality of putting maybe some, 

because I don't think they're that expensive, but I. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Yeah, I've been going through and 

identifying intersections that would, I don't want to say need it because. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 11 - 

 

Chairman Stulac stated Or be similar to that corner. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated That could be that could potentially 

benefit from it. Because honestly, I question whether that intersection up 

there could benefit from it. I've, I've sat there and watched and at no point 

have I seen anybody cut up off the curb on that, at that intersection. I'm not 

saying it doesn't happen. I'm just saying that it might be exaggerated a little 

bit on the necessity for having those out there, but I have been going 

through the district and looking at other areas where that could be an issue. 

The good news is, is a lot of our intersections we have the way that the 

crosswalks are. The cars couldn't go up on them. So, but I have identified a 

couple other intersections where that could be potential. But I'll be bringing 

that all back to the board. 

Chairman Stulac stated Okay. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Just to clarify if I may, I think one of the 

things that the public talked about was the benefit of having those up would 

give a pedestrian an opportunity to be out and be seen, but still be kind of 

protected by those. And I think even though they may not be going up on 

the curb, it still would give pedestrians an opportunity to step out onto the 

curb and still be protected and somewhat protected. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated And that's so the design of those is to 

keep cars from cutting sharp around the corners. And it does. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Slow them down too. If they can't come 

around that corner, they got to take a right angle turn or Of her. So, exactly. 

You're bringing that back. I'll just wait until you bring that back to the 

board. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Perfect. Thank you. There. There are 

a number of our intersections where those would have no benefit at all. Just 

because of the design of the crosswalks. A car couldn't cut that close onto a 

lane. But I've been going through and annotating our intersections and 

checking them out. 

Chairman Stulac stated Well, why don't we go ahead, and we'll come back 

to the public to. If any of you have comments, we first go through all the 

reports, then we have a chance for public comments. So, if any of you have 

a but let's and then as well the board will have a discussion too in a little bit. 

But do we have any reports from the district accountant? I guess the reports 

are already in there. Nothing to mention that. And then we can go to the 

engineer report anything from Collin? 

1. Administrative  

General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the report to the Board. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 12 - 

 

2. Water   

 General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the report to the Board. 

3. Wastewater  

 General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the report to the Board. 

b. District Accountant Report  

General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the report to the Board.  

c. Engineer Report 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated Thank you, Mister Chairman. Sure. 

Chris described the hobo tank pretty well, we're still on schedule with that 

project. There are a few concerns with the procurement of the accessories. 

Some of the steel fabrication may push the schedule out a little bit on our 

end. It's not a big deal. As long as the tank gets coated and painted before 

the weather gets cold. And there's documentation on the procurement issues 

that are having Matt and Chris and I, I think are all carefully scheduled to 

push a little bit. But nothing formal yet. Coordinating with the contractor on 

that. Lily Court plan review. I have the plans, and I've reviewed them. At 

this point, I just need to draft a letter to Chris. I do have some corrections 

that I'm going to want. Stanka consulting to do with the plans. Some grading 

changes that they'll need to make on the sidewalk, curb, and gutter that they 

had to go add. And then the PCI update, we do have all of our locations 

determined at this point. We're going to start the field work towards the end 

of the month. That is the plan. That's everything I got. Any questions? 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated What was the material? The procurement issue 

related to what. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated so it's the accessories, the mostly steel 

fabrication on the overflows. Getting steel fabricated. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated getting the raw material to be able to fabricate 

it. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated It's the custom fabrication of the steel 

takes a little longer than, than expected right now. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Gotcha. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated so, honestly, no surprise. Yeah. No 

surprise. I mean, it's these are specialized products, and it's the way the 

country is these days. I'm surprised we haven't run into more issues with it. 

Yeah. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Yeah. Thanks. I'll just. I didn't quite 

understand what that was, so thank you for clarifying. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 13 - 

 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated Yeah, they are, and they're the general 

contractor is pushing forward relatively quickly, actually with the painting 

and coating, which is our biggest concern. 

Chairman Stulac stated so Collin, wasn't this the tank that again? The last 

meeting in the public column about there was a 10 or $20,000 just for 

contingency. Wasn't this so? It looks like we may not so far. Things can still 

change. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated Yeah. So far, we have. 

Chairman Stulac stated Because it is. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated It's a $20,000 contingency. As Chris 

mentioned, we've had two change directives. The difference was roughly 

$8,500. And the credit and the positive to change the material of the vent. 

And then the other was adding another overflow air gap on the south tank, 

which was roughly $9,000 adder. So, we're roughly like I think it's like $800 

of $20,000 that we'll have to use. Yeah, there's still a long way to go, so I 

don't want to jinx anything, 

Chairman Stulac stated but at least with, like we said, with the blasting. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated Yeah. The biggest concern was 

blasting the inside of the tank because we didn't know what the condition of 

the steel was in relatively good condition. There are a few little concerning 

spots that we may have to address, but it's nothing. That's like Ridgeview 

tank was. 

Chairman Stulac stated because, you know, there was questions and 

concerns about the cost of that. And then that can people, maybe even board 

members even comment about being concerned about that specific line item. 

But what was the contingency all about? I mean, a lot of us knew what that 

was, but I think that's good to know that that might not need to be tapped in 

much, because, you know, we're all the money we can. You don't have to 

spend and save is good. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Yeah. I just want to reflect for the 

minutes of the general manager knocked on wood what? We're talking about 

this job. Because I don't believe it. I don't believe things are going good 

until the project is done so well. 

Chairman Stulac stated I mean, just that real tough part that really could 

have triggered a need to dive into that to me is it was good on that. It's a 

good sign. That's all. You know, of course, we still might have. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 14 - 

 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated and if you look at what I'm talking 

about, It's the day after the tank is completely stripped down and they're done 

stripping and sandblasting it. It rained on it, so it's now exposed metal and 

rained on. 

Chairman Stulac stated I just had one other question on the PCI update, 

which is something I'm excited to see we're getting at for the whole district. 

And do you think you'll get it done before winter? I mean, when you say go 

out and do it, that's the actual chorines, and you're going to take the actual 

samples out of the. 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated yeah. My understanding is that those 

will all be complete within a month or two, and then we'll be doing a lot of 

the, the actual data on the computer through the winter. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. Yeah, 

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated I think we'll be done. I'll have to check 

with Brian, but I would assume we're going to be done in January or 

February. That way we have a plan for the spring because I think we do want 

to perform some maintenance in the spring. 

d. Attorney Report  

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he has nothing to report. 

Chairman Stulac stated No news is good news. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated that's good way to look at it. 

Public comment: Resident Kath Waters stated her name is Kath. 

Chairman Stulac stated Kath. Okay. All right. Kath. 

Resident Kath Waters stated I just didn't know where to place this question. In the past, the website 

has had the candidates and their views for voting that are up for vote, and I don't see it on the 

Website, and it was really valuable to me, especially to make the decisions that I made about who to 

vote for. I think some of the information about what kind of experience each member of the board 

has made my choices a lot easier. And I'm just wondering, did I miss something or if there's an of 

course you can't answer me, but maybe in the process of your discussions you can, you know, say 

something that tells me how I can find that information. 

Chairman Stulac stated Okay. Well, it's interesting you mentioned that because I. Somebody 

somehow, I got a question, a correspondence, or maybe something next door. And I said, oh, I just 

assumed. I said, go to the website because I know the year I ran two years ago, it was the first time 

because they did that, because Chris and they had a lot of trouble. I think in the past they tried to do 

a candidate night. Not many people were showing up and then the district went, I think was a good 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 15 - 

 

decision to, you know, I was one maybe some they came in to interview and there was our views 

and opinions on there and.  

Resident Kath Waters stated It also you spoke to your experience and other boards that you had 

been on. 

Chairman Stulac stated Yes. 

Resident Kath Waters stated, And you know what your knowledge base was. And I think this board 

is really one of the best that I've, you know, encountered over a lot of years. So and that I think, 

helps the whole public of our community understand, you know, what the strengths are and what's 

the big issues. 

Chairman Stulac stated Okay. Thank you, Kath. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated so that should have been under public interest. Comment. That's where 

she was. She was asking where would it be appropriate for her to make that statement? It should 

have been public. 

Chairman Stulac stated Comment at the beginning she could have said at the very end and interim 

part or the start of the evening. But I think she's just saying if something comes up, we can discuss 

it. I don't know if Chris, you want to add anything, but if not, I can say something at the end when 

we get to the board. If there was any interest to maybe. Yeah, yeah. Thanks, Chris. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated So we just didn't do it this year. Okay. We've had 

historically very low turnout on any of it and very low interest. I think last time we had 2 or 3 of the 

candidates actually do a video and, and right now we've got three candidates running. One is 

currently on the board, one is an incumbent, one was previously on the board, and then one we 

haven't heard anything from her. I couldn't tell you anything about her. She came in and talked to 

me for a couple of minutes about what the responsibilities are of a board member, and that's it. I 

haven't heard anything from her. So, I think if anybody is interested and wants to know about a 

candidate, give the candidate a call. Their phone numbers are public. Their information is on the 

Secretary of State’s. It should I believe it's on there. 

Chairman Stulac stated That's a good point Chris, because it was it was even mentioned in some of 

those comments on the social media that the candidates can be you can contact them directly or 

communicate with them and, and ask them for their, their views. I do think it was kind of probably 

nice last year. I thought most of us did the video last year or two years ago, but maybe not everyone. 

But my only suggestion would be is if put the burden not on the district, because it was a lot when I 

came in, Chris and the staff here had to set up cameras and all that. But if the burden was put on 

them can just write a one-page description of their background experience and why they think they 

should be selected to be on the board. I think if they were to do that and give it to Brooke to put on 

the website, I think that would be much, much work for you guys as it was that prior session. But 

just a thought. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated So the one tightrope that we walk on is if we if we provide 

that option to candidates and a candidate doesn't do it, then can they come back and cry foul that 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 16 - 

 

that they weren't represented, that we were favoring other candidates on it. And that's that was my 

concern with the videos before when we did the videos because we had a couple of candidates that 

were like, no, I'm not going to do it. And so, but you know, I yeah, I look at what is the district's 

responsibility and what is our liability. So, both sides of that spectrum right there as far as 

candidates go. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Of course, those are the Mr. Hildebrandt do a profile on the 

candidates. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I believe he does. So, there should be some information on 

that in the paper. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Or at least he would approach the candidates to ask if they would 

submit something anyway. There's that opportunity. 

Chairman Stulac stated I think I was approached two years ago. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated It didn't happen to me. Yeah. 

Trustee Lufrano stated No, I agree, I was I know I did a video for you guys and then I know that I 

did. Curt did reach out to me for a Record Courier article also. I mean, there was a ton of candidates 

for many different Races, but. 

Chairman Stulac stated He reached out to me too. 

Trustee Lufrano stated yeah. And I mean, I guess that'd be a check question, but I think if you offer 

it to everyone, you have evenly and fairly offered it to everyone, if they decline, that's their own 

business. 

Chairman Stulac stated but yeah, that's what I was thinking too, Chuck. You know, what Chris was 

saying is if you notify all these are important, these are people running to be on the board and the 

people running for the board if they're told to submit a, you know, a simpler mode of. 

Trustee Lufrano stated Ask, ask. 

Chairman Stulac stated Ask to submit a yeah, I'm sorry. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated to give them the opportunity to do it, 

Chairman Stulac stated give them the opportunity to submit a one-page description of who they are, 

what I don't see there would be any legal ramifications. Chuck, tell me if I'm wrong. If they were 

asked that and if like they said, if 1 or 2 didn't respond, they couldn’t come back to it because they 

were given the opportunity to submit something. So, if on the board website, only two of the 

candidates have like a little letter in there and one didn't. We have no legal. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated I've not researched that, but my inclination is if the 

opportunity is provided equally to all candidates. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 17 - 

 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated that anybody declines then that’s their choice. But I haven't 

with that. That's my reaction. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. Because then they just decided not to. Okay. Anybody else from the 

public wants to come up and yeah. Step forward and sign in and tell us your name. 

Resident Bill Eisele stated It's a very short one of the things when I was running, we had an open 

house here, which worked, I think, very well. A lot of people showed up for it. 

Chairman Stulac stated An open house for.  

Resident Bill Eisele stated for the candidates. Everybody could come in. It was advertised before 

that it was on a Saturday, and I was amazed at how many people showed up to get information from 

the candidates. In fact, I was amazed because there were a lot of people, and they asked a lot of 

really good questions of the candidates. Anyway, I just thought I'd throw that out. 

Chairman Stulac stated okay. Thank you. Anybody else from the public likes to 

make a comment on the we're talking about these reports that we just went through. 

Okay. Well, then we'll go ahead and close public comment. And then just one more 

last time to the board for any further comment, discussion or questions from either 

Chris, Chuck, or Collin from anybody. Dale. Nothing. Okay. Well, then we'll go 

ahead and proceed to the next slide. So, we're done with five. So off to item number 

six. Just a second. Oh, just on the reports. Chris, I just had one other question. It was 

interesting that you there was talk about, you know, you were you were to continue 

to fight the RTC, you know, for a grant, maybe for pickleball courts at any. Has that 

fight gone? I think that was the word you used in the minutes from the last meeting. 

Anything further on that? 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I said I'm not ready to give up the fight on 

pickleball courts, but we haven't gotten any farther on that yet. 

Chairman Stulac stated It was I think it was. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated she did ask that we look at other options. And 

so.  

Chairman Stulac stated She did.  

General Manager Chris Johnson stated the thing that we're looking at on that is I can 

fight as much as I want, but it's, it's they have the board that approves those grants. 

And if they don't want to build any more pickleball courts in the county, then we're 

not going to get money for that. So, we're looking at, at the playgrounds and 

potentially redoing the basketball court out here because there has been a lot of use 

on the basketball court, surprisingly enough. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 18 - 

 

Chairman Stulac stated Is there one here at the. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated yeah. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah, I'm just thinking. I know there's one over in South 

Sunridge. Yeah. Because that was the thing you mentioned. That could also be 

there's $360,000 left over in that I guess account. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated yeah. 

Chairman Stulac stated and yeah, it wasn't that we could just go for that money for 

the pickleball, but yeah, you had mentioned in the notes that the basketball I know 

the basketball courts aren't in the best shape either or at South Sandwich Park. So is 

there are you approaching them for some of that money for the parks or. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated oh, yes. Yes. Yeah. So, what we're looking at 

is where it would be best spent. The quite honestly, when, when she And just so you 

guys know the community services director, Brooke, she lives here in the district, so 

she knows our park, she knows our area and she is a friend. But when she mentioned 

the playgrounds, I was kind of like I'd like to see some new stuff. But then looking 

back, our playgrounds really could use some work. We've got some areas where the 

playgrounds and the toys out there look worn. So, looking at some options on that. 

But potentially the basketball courts, just because this basketball court has been used 

quite a bit lately, I've been very surprised at it. But then some other things potentially 

that the bike park. 

Chairman Stulac stated does the process require like you have to turn in an 

application or is it just verbal? Yeah. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated absolutely we have to go through the full 

grant application process. 

Chairman Stulac stated so we're looking at doing that. Go ahead. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated previous boards have discussed putting in things like, 

you know, chess tables where concrete tables that are durable, sturdy in place that 

have the chess pattern in it so that it's not just stuff for the kids, it's all stuff for adults 

who could use it. And, you know, seating areas, raised planter boxes that incorporate 

seating areas that have a walking path. So, there's a lot of things that have been 

previously submitted for consideration. I'm just wondering if it wouldn't be, would it 

be a good idea to go back and take a look at some of those ideas that were shared and 

solicit some ideas from the board members about maybe what they would like to see. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated yeah, absolutely. I will send each of you an 

email individually, asking for your input on that, so that we can collect some ideas 

on that and give you some time to talk with your residents and your neighbors and 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 19 - 

 

find out, kind of pick the public's brain on it. I know what the public would like to 

see and see what ideas we can come up with. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Thank you Chris. 

6. Discussion only regarding General Manager Chris Johnson’s annual performance 

evaluation. 

Chairman Stulac stated Okay. All right. So, item number six. Let's go on to that and discuss 

only regarding General Manager Chris Johnson's annual performance evaluation. Trustee 

Lufrano. 

Trustee Lufrano stated Thank you. Thank you. So last year when we did the evaluation of 

the general manager, I believe I'm going by recollection, but it was my belief that the board 

was kind of looking at the evaluation system and didn't find it to be a super objective type of 

document. So. Chairman Stulac and I were appointed as ad hoc members, along with Brooke 

to. And we worked with Brooke to create a new evaluation template for the general manager 

annual evaluation. And I recall that we reviewed other evaluations the general manager's job 

description pulled certain bullet points out of that in order to drop it into the evaluation 

system. Looked at other local evaluation templates and, and just kind of came up with our 

own that we thought um compiled the best ideas and, and template in order for us to move 

forward in the in the new year this year to be able to evaluate the general manager. We 

brought that to the board in December of 2023. We all commented on it and made a few 

adjustments. I believe we removed an Na or a something to that effect and agreed that if we 

didn't like the five-column rating system, that in the future we might end up changing that. 

We did this with the intent to help the board objectively evaluate the general manager. Let's 

see the board. Oh, I believe also at the time in December, the board, each of the board 

members, shared the important aspects that they would be seeking or evaluating over the 

next evaluation period. Again, this is my recollection. I did look, I did try to look up. 

December minutes and item. It was item number seven. And they were pretty vague. So, I 

was going to ask if we could get an audio, I guess an audio copy of, of item number seven 

from the December 20th, 2023 meeting. Just so that I think for each of us, if everyone wants 

it, I know I want it just so that I can be able to next month adequately evaluate based on the 

bullet points that were important to me. So, I asked um Chris if we could have a copy of his 

job description, the evaluation template, and his accomplishments over this past year, which 

also including any grants that were received over the past year. And I really just wanted us 

to be able to look at this if we have any discussion tonight, but really for our next meeting, 

because I recall last year, at least for myself, and it was my first year, but I just recall feeling 

overwhelmed of trying to absorb it all, provide adequate feedback. All it all in one meeting. 

So, my intent was just for us to be able to have this in front of us so that next meeting, we'll 

be able to do a good job in in the evaluation. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated This isn't the current evaluation in here, is it? 

Trustee Lufrano stated this is the current evaluation. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated that's the one that says it was revised in 2021. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 20 - 

 

 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated 

that's the job description. 

Chairman Stulac stated So that's the that's the last page for the year. Then the form starts on 

the next page separate from it. 

Trustee Lufrano stated so the evaluation system is just as a reminder, it gives a definition of 

what um each of the categories is. It gives a definition for the categories meaning 

exceptional is, you know, it has a definition or exceeds expectation or achieves. So that 

again we can try our best to objectively evaluate the general manager. And again, as we 

went through, for example, financial stewardship, the three bullet points that we've listed 

there, as I recall, were taken directly from the general manager's job description. So, they 

were expectations of him. And again, just to. 

Chairman Stulac stated that were already in place. 

Trustee Lufrano stated yeah, yeah, yeah. And Bob, maybe you have more to add, but it's my 

recollection that we really just wanted to be able to, tie it all together. Meaning ties the 

expectations from the job description into the evaluation system and one more time just to 

be able to objectively, as best we can, evaluate the general manager. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. We as a committee, you and I and Brooke, came to the board. 

As you guys remember, it was a draft in December. There was a few comments. I think Russ 

made a good comment. We made those changes. So, then we actually then then it was up for 

review and adoption in January. And this is the form that we adopted. I appreciate you 

bringing it up. And it kind of slipped my mind because. And this is good to have it now. So, 

what I'd like to ask Trustee Lufrano. So wouldn't we be then working on this this month 

before the next meeting and, and then do we give it to Chris? Because at the end there's a 

signature for and I know you have a lot of experience with your HR, but so then there's the 

employee signature, which is obviously Chris and then the trustees. So are we to get these 

completed and done prior to the next meeting. Is that. 

Trustee Lufrano stated I think I was really thinking that.  

Chairman Stulac stated or bring them to the meeting.  

Trustee Lufrano stated yeah, it would be for the next meeting, but it really was more of a 

over the next month, we need to be thinking about, okay, where we stand on, on these items. 

And just a reminder for the board that this is a 365-day process, meaning we're looking at 

November of 23 through November of 24, when we're when we're doing this evaluation. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 21 - 

 

 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated I want to thank the chairman, Stulac and trust you for taking 

the time to put this together for us? I know I was one of the members that felt that it was 

very subjective, the process. It was kind of laissez faire, kind of let's, you know, this is what 

we think. But I wanted something a little more objective so that we could actually take time 

and be thoughtful about the process. And also, I think it's important for the community to 

know that we are doing we’re objectively it it's nothing personal. It’s because we're 

objectively reviewing the general manager's performance. And we have things that we are 

looking for, the general manager, and as you said, it would be great to have that information, 

whether it's Brooke, whether it's an audio or it's a transcript or whatever is easier for you. I'm 

fine with either. But for me, each of us had some things that we said we wanted to see from 

Chris in the coming year to be able to evaluate on. And a couple of those things that we 

talked about were that I can remember, is this a maintenance schedule. They will put that 

together. I think maybe the capital improvement plan. I'm not sure whether that was part of 

it or not, but basically, we were for the public. We were looking to get objectivity added 

back into the performance process. And for me, I want to thank Trustee Lufrano for putting 

it on the agenda because these things happen so quickly. You know, you get caught up in 

our lives and our own business and this is happening next month. So thank you for putting it 

on the agenda so we can it can be fresh in our mind to be able to start the work, to be able to 

go back and look at those things that we wanted to see from Chris, and we communicated 

directly to Chris and go back and take a look and have an opportunity to look at this last the 

last cycle, I felt very I wouldn't say blindsided, but I personally felt unprepared to be able to 

do an on the spot evaluation. And that's basically what it was last year. So, thank you for all 

the work done. And thank you for bringing it the month before. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated because if you hadn't brought it forward, I would have 

forgotten all about it. So, thank you. 

Chairman Stulac stated Yeah, it's an objective approach. You know, like, all the years 

working in the state government, you know, this was a common thing that I had and was 

evaluated, and I had to evaluate and do these reviews for a number of staff that I all the 

inspectors I supervise. So it is a systematic way that forces every one of us on the board to 

look at each of the categories and pick their respective section and, and just as much as it's 

an evaluation, of course, it gives it gives us a chance to give Chris input if there's areas we 

really think he's doing exceptional on if there's areas that maybe there's something that we 

you know, there's always that section at the end for you know, future goals and objectives. 

And that's what I always used to focus on as a supervisor is trying to look at whoever it was 

and, and, and put, put maybe, possibly if there's a need for some objectives and goals for the 

person to incorporate um and then it's just one. Each person is one, one board member filling 

this out. So, there'll be five of them at the end. So. So do you think then so during this next 

month, we should work on filling this out, and then we would bring it to the meeting filled 

out and then have a discussion, have a discussion and then but out of fairness to Chris. So 

when does he see him. Would it be at like I was thinking that if we want to have a discussion 

next meeting, he would out of fairness to Chris, he would need to see the, the evaluations 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 22 - 

 

and be able to um because there's a space for the comments from the trustee. But then there's 

also the employee line. So, let's say there was something in there about a future objective or 

a plan. It gives him a chance to comment like, oh, I've been working on this. 

Trustee Lufrano stated I think I want to ask Chuck a question. It's my understanding that the 

evaluation has to be a public process. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated Of the general manager. Yes. 

Trustee Lufrano stated The general manager. Okay. So how would that work as far as if we 

wanted to provide feedback prior to the actual meeting, to the general manager. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated Feedback to the general manager? Well, individual 

trustees can meet up with the general manager anytime they want to and have conversations 

they want to have, you know, individually and no walking quorum issues. Okay. Does that 

answer the question? 

Trustee Lufrano stated I believe so. 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson: I have a 

question also, Chuck. If they bring these filled out evaluation forms to the meeting, do those 

need to be in the board packet and available to the public? 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated they do need to be made available to the public. Yes. 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke T Thompson stated 

yeah. Okay. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated So we'll have to have give us a deadline for when we have to 

have them back. Okay, great. Or do we? Yeah. Right. Or do we sign them afterwards? 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated I 

think you guys should. 

Chairman Stulac stated we could sign our signature. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated yeah. The general manager typically would just be an 

acknowledgment. So, you see how we rated what we, you know, comments and then your 

ability to be able to make comments on our comments and then be able to see what those 

what that rebuttal is or what your, your perspective is. 

Chairman Stulac stated So the public won't see that part though, Chuck, if. I'm sorry, which 

part? Well, if we submit these to Brooke and put them in the packet with our form filled out 

and our signature. The public wouldn't see unless we did it the following month. The thing 

completely filled out where Chris has a chance to respond, and there's a comment section at 

the end of it for him and sign it. So then would those final ones have to be in the following 

board meeting packet so they could see the final. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 23 - 

 

 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated Though I don't think they have to be in the packet, but 

they're public documents available for request by any member of the public. 

Chairman Stulac stated Okay. Thanks. Yeah. Yes, Chris. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated so, if I may, Mr. Chair, as I point out to, I, I review 

several people every year. And one of the things that I do is I have a folder with a document 

for each of them on my hard drive. Brooks is like 72 pages long. It's. No, no. I have I have a 

sheet. And anytime something good or bad, I make notes in there. I just go onto my hard 

drive and say, on this day, this person did this, and it was beneficial to help these people. 

And just so that at the end of the year, I'm not going back and trying to remember what 

happened. This year, it's not possible. I can't remember what happened in my life over the 

past year, let alone seven other people's lives. So that's one thing that I do. Which could be 

beneficial as far as my accomplishments that I've got listed here, I just went back through 

the general manager's reports and pulled them up because again, I can't remember that stuff. 

There's too much going on around here for me to remember all these individual meetings. 

So, I went back through the GM's reports and pulled those out. But one important point that 

I want to make is the employee signature at the end that's not something where the employee 

is saying, no, that's I don't agree with this at all. They can you can make that note on there. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated It's just an acknowledgement. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated It's an acknowledgment that when I sat down and 

gave this, this review to this employee, that I didn't say to them, yeah, you're doing great, 

you're wonderful. But on paper I'm writing. No, you're horrible and you need to improve. 

That's just them saying, yep, this is what we discussed. That's it. It's not saying that they 

agree with it, but that's the that's them acknowledging that this is what was reviewed. 

Chairman Stulac stated That's right. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated And so that there's no he says, she says at the end of 

the day. And so that being said, my signature on those is that's that can happen after the fact 

of the matter because it obviously there's not going to be any question of what's said during 

my eval because it's all going to be on a recording. So, my signature isn't too terribly valid at 

that point. 

Chairman Stulac stated Well, it's right above it because you have a chance to comment. Let's 

say one of the trustees said, you know, they as a future objective, that they want you to work 

on X, y, z on something. You have the opportunity to clarify that yourself above your 

signature. There it says employee that that's the only point I was making that, you know, 

let's say someone has an objective for you or a goal and then really you are already working 

on that. And a lot of times, Chris, you're doing a lot of stuff that, you know, and a lot of 

times you're like, oh, great, Chris, you're already doing that. That just gives you that 

opportunity to respond. And then you know that you, you could say that's a great suggestion. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 24 - 

 

Just, you know, that was the goal I already had planned. That's something I was working 

towards or whatever. So anyways. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated I have a concern with five individual reviews being 

submitted for one person, five different points of view, and at some point, we need to 

determine whether this man is going to get a raise or not. So now we have five different 

shotgun effect, and you can't evaluate somebody five different ways. You need to have a 

consolidated review. This is the board's review of that man right there. This is our 

consolidated opinion of how he did his job this year. Otherwise, I don't know how he would 

understand what we're trying to tell him he needs to fix or what he did well. 

Trustee Dunham stated Question. 

Chairman Stulac stated Go ahead. 

Trustee Dunham stated are we allowed to talk about this without the public and do one? We 

have one review. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated no, not without the public. 

Trustee Dunham stated exactly. This way. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated this is where a general manager gets reviewed in a 

public meeting. 

Trustee Dunham stated Yes. Public meeting. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated that we need to further refine this process. Because I 

think it's wrong to give five individual reviews to one person for a year's worth of work. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated well, I have a different perspective, and that's that. These are 

tools for us as board members to be able to go through the process of evaluating. I mean, we 

already have. I agree this is not for us to make the decision whether or not he gets a raise or 

not or what that percentage will be. That discussion will happen openly at the meeting, but 

this is a tool for us to be able to do the work, to go back and take a look retrospectively, take 

a look at all the things that we said we were going to evaluate on, and also take a look at the 

things we told Chris we were looking to see from him and to be able to put that down on 

paper so that we have a basically a we've already formulated an opinion on where we stand 

as far as level of performance and whether or not a raise is. I mean, that's part of it, right? I 

mean. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated that there are five different opinions. That's the problem 

with one person's review. 

 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 25 - 

 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated that's just but it's a tool for us. It is a tool for board members. 

It's not it’s not. The evaluation will take place openly during the open session. But this is a 

tool for us to be able to again, go back and take a look and justify on paper why we feel the 

way we feel about certain things. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated So at some point we will have a consolidated opinion 

that needs to be documented. And that's what goes in his file. I would just say these are just 

tools. They don't get submitted. We need to come together as a board. And this is our overall 

view of his performance. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated and that happens in open session in my understanding. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated But it should be documented. 

Trustee Dunham stated well. My question that I knew we cannot fight with us discuss 

anything without these people here, even though there might be three, could be 30, but we're 

not allowed to talk amongst ourselves to discuss this. This is not what I'm used to in the 

private sector. It's a different way. None of us. You've got a supervisor or a foreman, and 

then you've got a project manager, and this all goes down the chain of command or uphill 

instead of. So, with this being said, I pretty much already figured that this man has done an 

outstanding job. And last year, I'm sorry that the said what I said to you. Those were big 

numbers. And you thought I said big number. The other districts in the area, I believe that he 

is the lowest paid, although I don't know all of his credits as far as with the Army Corps of 

Engineers, the college and all that, I can only go by what I see and what impression he 

leaves on me every time I come to a board meeting or see him away from here, out 

somewhere at the stop sign or whatever. So that's what I have, is how he has perceived 

himself in every meeting for the last two years. And by the way, it was my vote to finalize to 

hire this man, because I believe in him, and I still believe in him. So, his salary in my mind 

has been very generous. Him? I can't remember if you didn't take the insurance money or 

these things here, but are you really the lowest paid district manager? That's right. Yeah, and 

I'm looking at what he's performed in two years, and that's what I have to give him my 

rating. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah, well, just. General manager, but I just want to say we're not. 

We're not talking about his raise. We're just talking about the form. But go ahead. 

Trustee Dunham stated well, this this is part of the form trustee. I perceive. Yeah. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated yeah. Trustee Dunham, as much as I really appreciate 

the compliments and your support, please be careful that we're not doing my eval right now. 

And that's a fine line so because it's not agendized, that can be a problem. 

Trustee Dunham stated I thought it was a discussion, and that's what I'm hearing. It's a 

discussion on. 

Chairman Stulac stated on the form about next month, but. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 26 - 

 

 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated I'm just wanting to know how we get to that. Yeah. 

Chairman Stulac stated the one thing I just want to know. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Chuck, I just want your guidance on that to make. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated sure I did. Just take a look at the agenda item. And it's 

so broadly written that that's why I didn't shut it down. But this is not the day or time for the 

performance evaluation. Okay. 

Trustee Dunham stated we're okay. Next month we can give them all the accolades I 

thought, yeah. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated If I may just say something else for the public that this, we this 

board is in a very difficult position where we have to do an evaluation in an open session. 

When Chris meets with the bargaining unit, he's able to it's there's a negotiation and they go 

back and forth and they it happens in a in a small group. We don't get to be a part of it, but 

there's a negotiation process. We need to be able to be forthcoming and candid and 

pragmatic with our thoughts and our views and our opinions and the, to come to a point 

where in our own mind, we're making a decision. This is not nothing that we do today or 

during the next meeting should be taken as a personal attack on an individual. It is a 

pragmatic evaluation that unfortunately, we have the onus of doing in open session. It's a 

difficult task that this board needs to do, but it's how we do it. And Chris, Chris already 

knows that, you know, we've I wouldn't say we bumped heads, but Chris and I initially were 

still working on a way to be able to mesh management styles and expectations. And Chris 

knows he's the guy as far as I, you know, for I mean I, I was one of the people who hired 

Chris on board. So, there is no target on Chris's back. And although it may look that way to 

the public in the past, and it may look that way in the future when we have an open and 

honest discussion during the evaluation next month. But it's not to be construed as being a 

personal attack. It's just it is what it is. It's an evaluation. And we all have our opinions. And 

at the end of the day, one opinion doesn't matter. It's the board going to make the decision at 

the next meeting. 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson: stated 

well, can I say one thing, Bob? I think for the board, all five of you are Chris's boss. He 

doesn't have just one boss. So, I think each individual opinion is important feedback for him. 

Yeah. It's not. You know, Chris is my boss. I don't have five bosses, keep that in mind. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated It's a bit different. 

Chairman Stulac stated, and I just want to say two things. Two things. You know, like when 

Chris asked to do an evaluation of one of his staff members and when I had to do my 10 or 

11, inspector. I got together with them alone and yeah, you're right, it wasn't in front of the 

public. And so, when Chris does his evaluations with individual employees, he sits there 

with that person. But I just wanted to cover that. And the other thing I just want to say is, 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 27 - 

 

you know, and I appreciate the comments you're making. Trustee Sigman about, in the 

typical process, an employee gets an evaluation. But when we went through this process last 

year on the committee, we came to the agreement that this should be done. This form should 

be used by each board member. And I just wish you would have said something then, Russ, 

at that time, if you felt that at the end it should be a consultant, because that's not what we 

voted on and approved last year. It was to do. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated I don't think we voted on it or approved it. 

Chairman Stulac stated well, we approved this in January. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated we approved this form, but we never finalized how. 

Yeah, the end process was going to work to give Chris his evaluation. 

Chairman Stulac stated well, I think what we were saying is like Brooke said that we would 

all because we. 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated we didn't have this when we gave him his evaluation last 

year. 

Chairman Stulac stated that's right. But everybody is going to have after the fact, 

everybody's going to have a little different experience with Chris. Like, like there might be 

some that I give him an exceptional which is the top rating, an exceptional rating on that 

maybe the rest of you, but maybe it's because I've worked with him on him, and I worked on 

a couple specific issues. So, I do believe it works. Well, it isn't the typical you're right, Russ, 

typically you give an employee an evaluation. Like, you know, when my employees, I had a 

manager above me and then the division administrator. So, in a sense everybody gives input. 

But they did get one. So, I know what you're saying. You know, that's but I think in the light 

of the process we developed and what we and comments made by Trustee Garcia. And when 

I worked with Brooke and Vicki, it was the intention that we all would fill it out because we 

even had questions about, okay, well, like you were saying, well, you may not want to give 

an Na. So, then we made some changes because there were some specific things that you felt 

were maybe going to be a concern. So that's why we have five bosses, and we fill out the 

five forms. That's my understanding. Yes, yes. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Mr. chair, I just want to throw this out there. Please 

don't overthink this. No, don't overthink this. This is you five who represent these people. 

You five represent all of us. You represent me. I live in this district too. And you represent 

me. You are the voice of me as a citizen and all the other citizens in this district. It is your 

job to make sure that the district is being run in a way that is, that is appropriate to and 

fiscally responsible. That's your job. And so that is what you're doing right now when you 

come in and talk to me, that's what you're doing. I'm, I'm at the head of this ship and I'm 

steering it. And so, you are. You guys are giving me feedback on how well I am guiding the 

district right now. That's your job. You are a representative of the people to voice your how 

well I'm doing in my job. That's all there is to it. If you guys have if you guys observe 

something that I need to improve on, then that's it. I don't take it personally. It's feedback 

and that's the way it needs to be seen. Yeah. Sometimes it's difficult to do it. And I'll tell you 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 28 - 

 

now it is difficult to have your eval done in front of an audience. But that's part of the job. I 

signed up for this. So, it's your job to give me feedback, be it good or bad, to represent our 

neighbors on how I'm doing. 

Chairman Stulac stated Thanks, Chris, for that. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated So, you know, try not to overthink it. Try not to be 

worried about what's going on. 

Chairman Stulac stated It's okay. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Just one thing. The final evaluation will take place in public 

sessions, so there will be a record. So, I don't think it does need to be documented on paper 

because it's going to be documented in the minutes, what we discussed and what we decide 

ultimately. 

Chairman Stulac stated but I thought are we do we have to send these to you? But I thought 

we were going to send these to you by a date. You can let us know.  

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated If 

you guys want them included in the board packet. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated I think we're talking about two separate things. I'm just saying 

for, Russ's point. Yeah. How are we going to do the evaluation? The evaluation will be done 

in an open session. Russ said it should be documented what we decide and what we do. It 

will be. It'll be part of the minutes. We'll discuss. There will be a decision made and that will 

be part of the minutes. So, it will be documented. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated but this will be basically a justification for each of us on why 

we have this is this is again a tool for us to be able to justify why we feel the way they do, 

whether it be, you know, good, bad, or indifferent. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah, I'm just clarifying that earlier. On the separate note, I think we 

do need to. According to what Chuck said, I think we do need to get it filled out and turned 

into to Brooke by a date, maybe let us know. 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated yes. 

When I email all of you the audio file from last December, I'll put a note in there for the 

deadline. 

Chairman Stulac stated yeah. That way when we're talking to the public about the document, 

like Chuck said, we have it has to be part of the public record so that they can as we talk 

about it, they’re there. So great. Thanks. Any we'll come back to the board for one last time 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 29 - 

 

for any final trustee comments. But does the public want to step forward, have any 

reopening public comment on this item right now for anybody if you'd like to step forward 

and sign in. 

Public comment: Resident Kath Waters stated that she used to report five different divisions for 

which is funny that this is five people working for various different reasons for me to utilize my 

expertise as far as the company is concerned. And I got five reviews, but I got one final review. So, 

there was a number system, and those numbers were accumulated. And that number meant exceeds 

needs, that kind of thing. And just, you know, to consider something like that as far as how you 

proceed with your evaluation. 

Chairman Stulac stated Thank you. Any other public comments? Seeing none, we'll go ahead and 

close public comment. And just any final board discussion that this is not an item we're going to 

have to act on. It's just for discussion only. We're not. It's not for possible access to any other 

further. All right. So, then we'll proceed with the process that we talked about. And next discuss that 

at the next meeting. All right. That's it for six. 

7. Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the September 18, 2024, 

Board meeting. 

 

Public comment: none 

 

Vice Chairman Garcia motioned to approve Draft Minutes from the September 18, 2024 Board 

Meeting. Secretary/Treasurer Siegman seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

8. Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence 

Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications 

received by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the 

district. No action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request 

such item or topic be placed on a future agenda. 

 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated I will just state that we're not going to be able to participate. Well, we 

can't commit to participate. I would like to, but we have family visiting from Texas, so we're going 

to be entertaining a lot. But I probably will try to. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated, I'm sure. I'm not sure what they're going to want to do. So, I don't 

want to commit and then not make it.  

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated If you 

want to the day of there's always room. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated We had fun the last time and we're going to do our best to make it so. 

That said, what about candy? Do you need donations for candy? 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated Yeah. Any 

donations are awesome. We only have six participants so far, so I'm sort of waiting a little while to 

go buy candy. I don't want to buy a ton and have a ton left over. One gentleman was paying his bill 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 30 - 

 

a couple of weeks ago and donated $20 towards candy. He said his grandkids had an awesome time 

and he wanted to. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated I'll help. When I get home, I'll send myself a text to remind my wife to 

write a check. I don't write checks. She's one that writes checks. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated rumor has it Darth Vader will be there. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated yes Darth Vader will be there. Yes. So, I don't know. We have our 

own. I was thinking about what we could dress as this year. But you're right. We could just I guess 

we could fall back to last year's costume. And I'm going to try and also make it to the fun run. I'll 

call it the five K. And I would like to at the next at least for staff. Anyway, I think the staff shouldn't 

go without donuts and coffee on the cleanup days. So, work with me on that and I'll volunteer to 

bring those. Bring those to the We'll start. Start starting with the first one. Hopefully, I'll be in town, 

but we'll coordinate so I can take care of that for the staff at least. Okay. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Well. Thank you. On that note our staff usually don't get 

coffee and donuts because we're out in the field. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated Right. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated but I usually feed them, so I've gone up and gotten us lunch. 

This last one, we didn't because we were outside. That's right. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated I remember now you talked we talked about that before. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated thank you for that. 

Chairman Stulac stated Just on the Trunk or Treat what time does that start again, Brooke? 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated Three at 

three. 3 to 5. 

Chairman Stulac stated and if I wanted to, what would you. What would I do? What would I come 

to help with? Is there. I don't have a truck, but do you need to have a. 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated you have a 

car or van. You just decorate and pass out candy. 

Chairman Stulac stated Yeah. Okay, great. So, if I want to. Okay. I'll see if I can. You don't even 

want to put the hatchback of the Subaru in my truck. Yeah, exactly. I'm just curious about what you 

and they're making. 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated I shouldn't 

give away their secrets. Some type of booth. So, it's not going to be in a trunk or truck, either. It's a 

booth is how they describe it to me. So, I'm curious to see what that would be. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 31 - 

 

Chairman Stulac stated that's great. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated last year, we actually had a pop up sitting off the end of my 

truck, and Tammy decorated the inside of it to look like the cantina band with a bunch of alien stuff 

from Star Wars. So, it's just fun for the kids. 

Chairman Stulac stated so to clarify. The help you need would be if we wanted to bring an extra 

vehicle and set up a little. 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated yes, to pass 

out candy. 

Chairman Stulac stated okay, great. Thanks. 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated we only 

have six, so. 

Vice Chairman Garcia stated I just operated out of the back of our SUV. Okay. Decorated. 

Chairman Stulac stated okay, good. That helps me. Thanks. Trustee Siegman, anything? 

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated I have nothing. 

Trustee Lufrano stated so I did Trunk or treat last year. And I think even the year or two before that. 

And it's always very fun and pretty busy. And the kids are so excited. I am not able to do it this 

year. But I do hope that you guys know whenever you need additional help at any of the events. I 

try to always let Brooke know, but I'm always happy to help if I'm available. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I recall you being there last year with a big baby. 

Trustee Lufrano stated Yes, exactly. Yes. And Yeah. And I also, I had wanted to come to the fun 

run, as you call it. Robert and I'm unable to do that also. But anyway, that's all I have. 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated What day is the trunk or treat in? Brooke? 

District Administrative Services Supervisor/Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated Halloween. 

The 31st? Yeah. Are you going to come again? 

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated I don't know. 

 

Chairman Stulac stated Chris. With the five K run, are you? Does the CVT kind of provide the 

volunteers or do you have to. Do you need people? 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I'm the only one that we're bringing up for staff. Just because 

I'm the only one that I can bring out and not pay overtime. This is basically their event. 



 

 

Minutes of the October 16, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting 

- 32 - 

 

Chairman Stulac stated It's free, so you don't need a whole lot. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated I'll be out here just to represent the district, make sure that 

that all of our infrastructure, like, we're putting out garbage cans and cones and so at the end of the 

event, I'll make sure that I recover all the cones and stuff, but. 

Chairman Stulac stated It'll be pretty straightforward. 

General Manager Chris Johnson stated Yeah, it's pretty straightforward. 

9. Adjournment 

 

Vice Chairman Garcia motioned to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Lufrano seconded.  

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:25P.M. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINAL APPROVED MINUTES AS PRESENTED 

 

 

 

Secretary/Treasurer  

Russ Siegman 

                                            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


